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Kris: My name is Kris Carlson-Lewis and | am member of the Isle au Haut Historical Society. It is
August 26, 2017 and | am interviewing Parker Waite here on Isle au Haut. He is going to provide
us with some background on how he ended up coming to Isle au Haut and also his involvement
with the Isle au Haut Power Cooperative. First of all, Parker, | wanted to start off with where
you were born and how you ended up here on the island?

Parker: | was born in Charleston, South Carolina. | grew up outside of Philadelphia in the
suburbs, a place called Bryn Mawr. My family had a number of friends in that area that
summered in the Penobscot Bay specifically Mamie and Charlie Lakin. They encouraged us to
come try it out here on Isle au Haut one summer.

That was the summer of 1954. So, my father and mother rented from | believe, Staige Davis’s
mother Greta, Barter Creek. So, we came and stayed there. That’s how myself and my other
two brothers, John and David happened to be aware of Isle au Haut and the whole family just
really loved it here. It was an amazing series of summers. Meeting the people who lived here
then.

| remember Billy [Barter] and he was dating Bernie at that point. And Bill Robinson, he used to
take me lobstering. | had a number of traps that | set there in the thoroughfare between Burnt
Island and Isle au Haut. | think it was about that time in '54, | was ten years old. It was probably
about that time, | decided | really wanted to live here year-round. Unbeknownst to me, my
brothers, David and John also felt the same way.

David was the first one of the three of us who ended up back here. He moved here in '73
although I’'m not one hundred percent sure about that. He ended up running the island store
for a bunch of years. He married Dede Smith who came along and became the school marm.

I moved back here | think in 1976 after living and doing a bunch of different things. | moved
here from Alaska. At that point in my life, | was living in a place called Eagle River which was at
the early stages of the Matanuska River Valley.

| was up there because Pat Baird, my wife at that time was a biologist working for the federal
government. She had field camps out through the Aleutian Islands. She studied migratory water
fowl. That’s why | was up in Alaska at that point. Having been in Alaska before that. The first
time | went to Alaska was in ‘64, there was a huge earthquake in 1964 called the ‘Black Friday,’
9.2 on the Richter scale on the Kenai Peninsula. At that point, | was in college at a place called



Denison in Ohio. | had first wanted to move to Isle au Haut and then in my college years, | had
wanted to move to Alaska. | thought it would be a great place to start some sort of a business in
construction. So, when this earthquake came along | needed to check it out.

| went up there that summer.

That’s a long story that’s really not related to this story. The reason | ended up getting the job in
Alaska was in part because of the lobster boat experience that | had with Bill Robinson all those
years before. When | went in to apply for the job, they said, “Well, do you know how to run a
boat?” | said, “Sure.” They quizzed me on it and | told them what | had done. Obviously, it was a
bunch of years before that.

So, they said, “Well, you are hired.” So, off | went.
Kris: How long were you in Alaska for?

Parker: The first time | was up there just for a summer in 1964. | worked as a game warden for
the state Fish and Game. It was in the commercial salmon fishing end of their business. What
they ended up doing was they have people who are called ‘stream guards.’ These are wardens
that they post at the mouths of all the streams on the coast of Alaska that have an abundance
of salmon that are either coming out of the streams or are returning to spawn.

The reason for the Stream Guard is to protect that resource. They do flyovers and try to decide
how many fish are coming and going. They set boundaries and fishing time limits. The stream
guards enforce those policies. Basically, what it meant was they stuck me out in this place
called Point Gore which is down on the end of the Kenai Peninsula three days around from
Homer by boat. And that’s where | stayed. | was living by myself for three or four months and
they would fly down once a week and drop food and mail. It was quite an experience.

Kris: It sounds totally isolated. That must have been difficult.

Parker: It was isolated. It was a challenge. There were some amazing things that happened in
the course of that experience. One of them was being chased by a pod of orca whales. Orcas,
they are a killer whale. A killer whale is really a large dolphin in my mind. | won’t go into that

story anyway...bunch of stories.

Kris: That’s interesting. It sounds like it prepared you for living here at some point in time
obviously.

Parker: | got myself sidetracked.
Kris: Let’s go back to what brought you to Isle au Haut.

Parker: Well, like | said, when | was 10 or 11 or 12, | had decided | wanted to move here. By the
early 70’s, | was much firmer in my belief. At that point, | was living in Montana where my wife



at that time, Pat who | mentioned before who ended up in Alaska. | ended up there with her.
She was at the University of Montana getting her doctorate in zoology. And | was working. | did
a whole bunch of different jobs while | was in Montana. | ended up working on a cattle ranch,
the Lindbergh Cattle Company out in Greenough, Montana.

Kris: Lindbergh as in the flyer?

Parker: Yes, Charles, he would come in the summer. He and | would be working in neighboring
fields. | would look over there in the early mornings when we showed up for work. He drove an
old baler, a New Holland baler from the 40’s. Charles would come out in the morning at first
light there and he crawled all over that machine every morning. It was as if he was touching
every bolt. All the zerk fittings were being greased and all the belts were being tested | felt like
as | was watched him with his routine that is what he must have done for every airplane that he
approached.

Kris: Making sure it was safe to fly.

Parker: That’s probably why he was still alive at that point. | don’t know how old he was then. |
believe he was in his 70’s. We used to...| would be there with him and the rest of the family in
the evenings at dinner. So there obviously was a lot of conversation back and forth.

Kris: Sounds like you have had had some interesting exposure.
Parker: That really was for me; it was a moving, a very moving experience.
Kris: Wow. That’s something. So...

Parker: Back in Alaska, in Eagle River, Pat Baird and | ended up getting divorced that year. That
was ‘75 or ‘76. That was my time to head to Isle au Haut. That winter | had gone...this is non-
sequitur... that winter | had gone on a sled dog race that runs across Alaska called the Iditarod
Race. |went on that that winter. Not as a musher but | was photographing a team from
Montana. A guy named Jack Hooker brought a group of dogs up to run. A good friend of mine
had been training his team and that’s how | got connected with Jack. | ended going along taking
pictures of the whole run. It was an incredible experience. | got around not by sled but | got
around by bush plane. | would hitch rides on these planes as we bounced from...There are 25
plus check points as you run from Anchorage to Nome. All those check points had to be stocked
by planes usually or snowmobiles because that’s the way the trails were established is by
snowmobiles.

They were hauling goods back and forth between all those villages. | would hitch rides with the
planes. We would be stocking check points with dog food and human food. The food wasn’t
packaged up like we have it now in little baggies. | was handling seal carcasses and sides of
moose. It was carcasses of frozen salmon. We would pack them in the planes so much that
when we got a plane loaded there was just enough room. | would slither in on top of this pile.



there was just enough room to get in there between me and the roof of the plane. And | don’t
know how the pilot was able to touch the controls, it was that full. Anyway, that spring Pat and
| got our divorce.

Kris: You headed this away.

Parker: Then, | headed this way. | stopped at the Lindbergh Cattle Company on my way here. |
got here in July. And | remember one of the first things...| mailed everything that | had that |
was going to have here through the U.S. postal service. So, my brother David who was running
the store at that point had this big pile of boxes in the little cottage that the Keidels owned.
That was where David and Dede lived at that point. That was before David and Dede were
married, | believe.

Kris: You arrived in the middle of the summer it sounds like...

Parker: | remember going up to the ball field to the soft ball games. Everybody was playing up
there. That’s where | met Bill McDonnell.

Kris: Does he factor into this story?

Parker: Yeah, Bill basically factors into everything | have done since arriving back here. He has
been a huge part of my life. When | ended up here, | was moving away from...I was opposed to
nuclear power. | was opposed to the grid that was connecting everybody around the United
States. | was basically one of those drop-out type souls from the 60’s. That leads to another
whole story in my life which was kind of written about by a guy named Ed Abbey in a book
called the Monkey Wrench Gang. That was based on a lot of nonsense that a group of friends of
mine and | did that Ed transferred into some sort of a fictional story that led to an
environmental...I don’t think it led to the environmental movement as it occurred, as it
unfolded but it was certainly critical in the history of violent ecoterrorism. | don’t in any way
advocate what was written about now. | know that those of us involved in what transpired feel
pretty much the same way as | do that it was ultimately destructive and not productive.

| am trying now to get back to Isle au Haut.
Kris: You arrived in July of 1976 and your brother David was the...

Parker: David was at the store. | didn’t have a lot of money. However, when | first went to
Alaska in ‘64, at one point there, | had an opportunity to walk into an art gallery in Anchorage.
And there were these lithographs by this guy Fred Machetanz. | just absolutely adored these
lithographs that Fred was doing. He lived up in the Matanuska Valley at that point. | subscribed
to them. Fred was selling them for $35 dollars apiece at that point. For the next ten or fifteen
years, every time Fred finished one of his lithographs, he’d send me a copy of it. Over the years,
the price bounced up. It bounced from $35 to the last one | bought from Fred cost close to



$200. It was a stretch. | wrote to Fred and said “I can’t continue to buy these any longer.” So
that was the end of it.

In 1976, | am up there and | walk into a gallery. There were a whole bunch of Fred’s prints on
the wall except now the price tag on them was a minimum $3,000 for one print. So, | had this
trove of prints that | ended up selling.

Kris: To support yourself.

Parker: That’s how | ended up...I had a chunk of change when | arrived here so | could afford to
be here without a job. But eventually | did have to work. | got a job as a Road Commissioner for
a while here on the island.

| was the one who punched the ‘Needle’s Eye’ out. Back then the Needle’s Eye was this really
tight series of turns that’s down before you get to the pond. You go down past Pat Tully’s house
you go down into the woods there and the road kind of snakes down to where there are a
whole bunch of culverts taking the stream that runs down there under the road.

Kris: The road was really curvy.
Parker: And it was very narrow.

Kris: Do you really have to have a strong background in road building to know how to build it so
it doesn’t give way or wash away?

Parker: | don’t have a strong background in anything. | was hired to do that. The Road
Commissioner, just because | was available. You basically try to educate yourself. You see that
there is a problem and there was definitely a problem in the spring because it was so wet down
there. The water wasn’t adequately passing through that place. You end up trying to make it
better. | ended up putting four huge four-foot diameter culverts down there which made a big
difference. We blew a bunch of ledge out of the way to create a wider road and drainage
ditches. If you go down through there now, | could point out what | did to change it. It definitely
changed the Needle’s Eye, it was no longer the Needle’s Eye.

Kris: | never heard of it before. Did you or somebody else have the knowledge to work with
dynamite?

Parker: | hired a guy in Stonington. | hired his crew to come down and blow. Unfortunately, |
can’t remember his name. We were at it for a couple of weeks.

Kris: So that is one of the projects you took on. When | interviewed Belvia she mentioned that
folks who lived in Head Harbor and wanted to come to town drove to a very muddy place in the
road and parked their car. They then waded through the mud and got in another car to
complete the trip to town. Is that the same place, the Needle’s Eye?



[Did | lose a few lines here?]
Kris: The part you played in resolving that mud pit or quagmire every spring.

Parker: It was interesting to me down there. At that point, Pat Tully was experimenting with
tidal currents thinking there might be a source of electricity for the island. He actually was
monitoring the water flow both off the island and through that gut down there where the salt
water is. I've forgotten the name of the ledge off of there.

Kris: Is that near a brook? John DeWitt had mentioned to me Pat was doing experimenting. He
got so he had a lightbulb in his house that he was able to power from the current of the stream.

Parker: That was the beginning of the alternative energy solution for Isle au Haut. First,
obviously came Pat with the generators. He built the Hi-Line. Of course, he had help from the
men here that were willing to or able to assist in the construction of the Hi-Line. If you think
about it, it’s amazing to have a bunch of people who didn’t really know what they were doing,
put this system together.

Kris: Is that the generator that is down here in the old power house at the town landing?

Parker: That’s the old Cummins that is there now. It was a World War Il machine that | don’t
recall now how we came by it. That’s the most wonderful piece of equipment. | just love that
thing.

Kris: My understanding was it took like forty steps to try and get it running.

Parker: It took a lot to turn it over. | remember taking it apart once. | could take the generators
apart but | just couldn’t put them back together. | took the Cummins apart and then Pat came
in. He manufactured a bunch of tools to hone out the cylinder walls in that engine. He did it all
by hand. He was amazing. | felt like he was a genius and an absolute gift to this community out
here, what he did.

Kris: Didn’t he go to MIT? | got the impression he was very much a genius.

Parker: He was brilliant, absolutely brilliant, | think.

Kris: | was interested in how it all started. It was with him experimenting on his own.

Wasn’t it the ‘50’s and people wanted television? Did it help bring along the interest for
electricity generation on the island?

Parker: Yes, the need for refrigeration too. | really can’t speak for the beginning of the power

company. | think Bill Stevens could probably do that. Bill ultimately ended up helping Pat a
tremendous amount in those early years. Pat got to the point where trying to keep the engines



running was an enormous chore. When | came along, the engines were running seven days a
week, twenty-four hours a day.

| had heard before then they ran for just a certain period of time but | don’t have any memory
of that. There was no power when | came here in the 50’s that | remember. So, it was when |
came back in the 70’s, Pat had built this pole line and the power company generator shed at the
town landing.

K It was up and running by 1976.

Kris: The generator shed was up and running by the time you showed up in '76. | think was it
partly the fuel cost rose significantly in the 70’s?

Parker: There were two major problems back then that | recall. One was the enormous increase
in the cost of the fuel but also there was the problem with purity of the fuel. A lot of the fuel
we were getting had sludge in it. It was fouling the engines. That was creating a maintenance
problem just trying to keep the thing going.

Kris: | wasn’t aware of that.

Parker: I'm getting ahead of myself. | don’t remember the year now but Bill Stevens who was a
close friend of Pat’s started helping Pat out obviously run the company. It got to the point Pat
had been doing it for so many years that he basically had an emotional collapse over it and had
to step aside. Bill stepped in to keep it going. There weren’t that many people available that
would help him.

Around here it’s more the willingness to help instead of the knowledge. As | stated before, |
don’t have a background in anything that | have undertaken. You just kind of get yourself into
hot water and you try to figure out. You don’t try to get yourself into hot water. You get
yourself into a situation running the Isle au Haut electric power company and trying to keep
these diesel generators going which is what | ended up doing. Bill was helping Pat and Pat had
to step aside. Bill needed some help and so | pitched in as an engineer. | really don’t have any
experience whatsoever either in electricity or diesel engines. So, when | started taking the
engines apart, | didn’t know what | was doing. But it’s the kind of thing because you have to,
you figure it out.

You do the best you can. It’s kind of ‘seat of the pants’ and a lot of crossed fingers and
sometimes luck comes to play. | believe that most of what | have done has been worked out
due to luck, not for any other reason.

So, | am helping Bill out and we are trying to figure out how to make the company go. One of
the things was Utilization of waste heat So, we applied to the Department of Energy and got a
grant to build a facility that would utilize waste heat which we spent a number of years doing.
it was all a waste-based heat project.



And we ended up building a sloped roof. Oh, it was a greenhouse laundromat combination idea
for the island. Everyone was hauling their laundry off to wash. Why not have washing machines
here? So that was where that whole idea came from.

| can’t remember if it was a $10,000 grant. There was a guy named Bev Murphy who had a
summer home over on Little Deer Island opposite Pumpkin Island Light. Bev was president of
the Campbell Soup Company and an advisor to whoever the President of the United States was
at that time and a member of a board of advisors connected with the Department of Energy.
He happened to be an acquaintance of my family. So, | submitted this application to his office
and they ended up awarding the power company a $10,000 grant to do this waste heat project
which unfortunately we never brought to conclusion. | can’t remember exactly why...Bill
Stevens could tell you...that project was never brought to fruition.

Part of the problem was | was having trouble keeping the company going. At that point, | was
trying to keep the engines going and that was taking so much time and energy, | really didn’t
have time to do anything else. It was during that period and | don’t remember the years but |
realized we couldn’t continue to do this. We couldn’t continue to run these diesel generators
with the cost of fuel going through the roof. All the impurities in the fuel was leading to all
these mechanical breakdowns. So, | felt that what we needed was alternative energy. | began
to research the possibility of bringing either tidal power, wind turbine, or photovoltaic panels to
the island. This was in 1977, 78, 79 somewhere in there all that was percolating through my
brain. Obviously, there was no internet back then but there was a phone up in Stonington.

Kris: The infamous phone, a public telephone which hardly exist anymore.

Parker: And so, | tried to find some hope or help with an alternative power source. But it wasn’t
possible. It didn’t make any sense. So, at some point, in exasperation, | felt submarine power
cable, an extension cord to my brain, bring an extension cord from the mainland. That was at
cross purposes with my absolute disgust with nuclear power because there were nuclear power
generators providing power to the grid over there.

Kris: Your interest in getting off the grid by coming to Isle au Haut.

Parker: The whole thing was kind of against me. It was the only thing that made sense for the
island. So that led to approximately a three-year project to try and figure out how to run a cable
or to figure out how to finance a cable. And it’s not like | did all of this on my own. There were a
number of people who come here in the summer who were very wise people, Orville Sebring
for instance or Travers Nelson.

Kris: Did they have some expertise?
Parker: They didn’t but Travers recommended we get an engineer to specify what it was that

we needed to get electricity from Stonington to Isle au Haut. He knew | didn’t know what | was
talking other than a 120 volt and a plug. So, we hired an engineer and the engineer drew us a



Isle au Haut Bectric Power Gompany: In 1978 ¢ 1979, prior to the 6Qubmarine Cable Year s¢ and while the diesel generatorswere still running at the Isle au
Haut Hectric Power Gompany (POQO), Bill Sevens (then President of the G.) and Parker Waite (then Vice-President and Chief Engineer) applied for and
received a @-generation grant from the U.S. Department of Energy. They were going to use the waste heat from the generatorsto heat water for a
laundromat facility and a greenhouse ¢ both of which would be part of the existing building.

The photo (below) shows the greenhouse under construction ¢ the sloping 2¢ x 12¢ timbers attached to the building at the roof@® edge and the vent chimney at
the right-hand gable end of the building. Also shown in the photo isa plastic shed Parker had built on the left-hand side of the POQO building. Pat Tully and
Parker Waite were frantically rebuilding diesel engines inthis space, trying frantically to maintain the power generation plant.




schematic of exactly what we would need. Ultimately, Pat Tully took that schematic and built
the substation down there right next to the school house. That’s where it came ashore.

Kris: | always knew there was a little building down there. Is that still there now?

Parker: It was just a couple of poles initially. The building wasn’t connected with the power
company. Pat put two poles in down there and we dug a ditch down to the water and put the
cable in and ran the cable ashore there and ran it right up to the poles. Pat installed all the
components that the engineer had suggested we have. Plus, we put in an enormous ground
mat to try and defuse, if you will, the potential for lightning strikes because that quadrant of
the island is susceptible to getting hit by lightning. That is true of most of the islands in the
Penobscot Bay. That quadrant of all those islands. | don’t understand the dynamics of lightening
that much but it was an element in the whole concept of delivering electricity here. How do you
work for or eliminate that as a problem because it is definitely a problem everywhere?

In order to defuse it, | put in this ground mat of thick copper wires all over the place around the
school house. It was buried everywhere over there. There is a certain shape that you make a
wire so that it easily accepts or releases electricity. It is a parabolic shape that has a specific
curve. You make every end of every wire that exact profile and consequently, electricity or
charge passes easily into or out of the conductor. | used the same principle in the cable, all the
splices. It is not me that did the splices. The shaping of all those wires was done by this splicer
that we hired to come work on this cable. That’s another whole part of the project.

Just that one element in the cable that runs from Stonington to here. There are five splice
points in there. That was a critical element in the cable.

Kris: Back to when you were first researching this concept?

Parker: When | realized we needed the extension cord, that’s when | tried to educate myself on
high voltage submarine cable. Compliments of that phone at the hardware store, | called
literally every submarine cable company installation in the United States, every one of them, to
ask them their experience. Some people would be willing to talk about it. In fact, | think most
people | talked to were willing to discuss the history of whatever it was | was asking them
about. | explained | lived on this small island and | am a person who doesn’t know anything
about this. We are trying to figure out how to supply electricity so instantly there was a rapport
developed. They knew | wasn’t out to make money off of their knowledge. | think, they would
share. So, | had a huge pile of experience, information from people who had had experience
with submarine cables. When you get a quantity of information like that, there are some real
obvious things that show up right way. One of them was you don’t want to use armored cable.

Everybody including the insurance companies are pounding the streets that everyone has to
have armored cable. | don’t think that armored cable is helpful to delivering electricity to

islands and | don’t think it is helpful to the survival of a cable. It makes it much more difficult.

Kris: By armored cable, do you mean cable encased in metal...
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Parker: Stranded metal on the outside to protect it. It makes sense you put an armored jacket
on something. It turns out not so wise to do. It’s such a common problem where they have had
breaks. For one thing, it makes the product a lot heavier. It has its positive points because it
sinks which is what you want the cable to do when you put it over board. But, it also makes it
awful hard to pick up, to handle, to put down where you want it to go. If there is any tension on
it that creates problems also.

For instance, if someone snags the armored cable with an anchor, you are going to put a kink in
it. You don’t allow the elasticity of the plastics, rubber compounds or wires to survive because
they get kinked. Then, the kink or armor usually abrades the wires. In the case of the cable that
runs from Swan’s Island to Frenchboro, which | have gone over and helped repair; over the
years that sucker, what happens there, a scallop dragger comes along, hooks into the cable, it
gets sucked up into a boulder or rock or group of rocks and pinches it off. It chafes, and is the
first thing to go. Then, the water invades the cable and there is a short. Then, you have to repair
it. So, you haul it back up. You are stuck there dealing with all that armor to get rid of before
you can address or deal with reconnecting the conductors.

When there is a short in the cable, it is an explosion that causes a lot of melting and destruction
to the elements in the cable and it blows back the area you can work on. Plus, you get the salt
water which is now running into the cable and that further creates a problem for you.

Kris: So, do you actually have to splice a new area? So, when you bring it up | am assuming that
puts a lot of pressure [added tension] on the cable...

Parker: You chop out a piece. But that’s not what we did over there. We whacked off what we
had between Swan’s Island and Frenchboro, we chopped that cable and then worked with what
we had on deck. We put ‘come-alongs’ along the line to try and draw it together. There wasn’t
a lot of slack in the line. That was a further stress point. | am sure that splice must have failed
over the years. | haven’t really followed it.

Kris: You were keeping those sorts of issues that you had heard about in mind in trying to
decide what would work best....

Parker: Trying to make this thing work. See they don’t make seven-mile cable. They can
extrude it. But generally, the extruders break down after about 4,000 feet. That means you
have to have a spice point.in there.

That’s another whole part of the components of a cable. You have to know how long the pieces
are that you are going to get and how to connect them. First, | got by the issue of the armored
cable. It was easy to make all these decisions because there was a group of guys here on Isle au
Haut which as | remember it was Travers, Dotty Dodge, Tom Knight and Bob DeWitt.

Kris: Jake Knight?

Parker: Jakes’ father was on the board [Tom Knight]. Jake helped the power company
tremendously. He’s another genius. I'd love to tell a story about Jake at some point. That’s
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another story to tell at another point. Jake has no clue | don’t think of what he did. | am going
to do a diversion.

Kris: Okay we are going to hear the story about Jake.

Parker: We had a problem with the regulators in our machines here, the diesel generators.
They generate current but the current isn’t a continuous generation by the generator unit. The
current fluctuates. Part of the fluctuation is driven by the demand. In other words, what people
need for current on the island. if there is a big increase in demand, say everybody’s
refrigerators come on at the same time.

Kris: Everybody gets up in the morning and starts doing their laundry and their ironing.

Parker: There is a spike in demand. That causes the generators to increase in speed to make
more electricity to meet the demand. The engines all have what’s called a regulator on them.
All generators have a regulator on them. The regulators up until 1978 maybe, were not that
sophisticated. In the case of the Isle au Haut Electric Power Company, our regulators were
failing on a regular basis. We had a problem and we weren’t the only ones having a problem.
The company that made most of the regulators in the world was Basler out in Chicago, | think.
We obviously had a long running conversation with them about their regulators that kept
breaking down. There wasn’t anything they could do to solve the problem. It was a problem
they were having throughout the industry.

Jake came along and looked at the problem. and said, “Oh, I can fix that. | can make a bread
board regulator.” He went home and he had whole box of electrical parts capacitors and diodes
and I am in no way enough familiar with what he had. He had this pile of electronic devices that
he had used as a kid to make this, that or the other as kids are want to do. He came back two
days later with this bread board regulator that he had made on his kitchen table and slapped it
on the Cummins and that thing ran absolutely flawlessly with this regulator that Jake had come
up with. | was so proud of him.

Kris: That’s amazing.

Parker: | called up Basler and told them about this and they said “Oh, send us a schematic.”
Here the two of us, pretty naive people. We put that in the mail and off it went and about three
months later, Basler came out with an advertisement about this incredibly fast durable
regulator that they had just developed.

Kris: They took all the credit.

Parker: That particular Jake Knight design is on almost every generation plant in the world.

Kris: Isn’t that something? | never heard that story. This island attracts so many amazing
people.
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Parker: It takes your breath away to think about it. Of course, the impact that money may have
had on Jake’s life. | have no idea what Jake is doing now. | don’t think Jake’s aware that he
totally changed the Basler regulator company.

Kris: 1 don’t know. Was he related to Townie in some way?
Parker: Yes, he was but | don’t remember whether he was, a grandnephew maybe.
Kris: That’s quite a story. So, now that | got to hear that diversion...

Parker: The extension cord. Once | figured out we needed an extension cord. Then | needed to
figure out the wire. The one thing that | haven’t mentioned in any of this is that obviously being
submarine cable, you are going over a landscape between Isle au Haut and Stonington. | was
fortunate in that Bill McDonnell at one point, early on while | was here, came to me with the
this ‘get rich quick’ scheme of becoming scallop divers. He knew | used to dive for what was
called langusta; it’s a spiny lobster on the west coast. | had been a scuba diver for years on the
west coast. He knew that | was a diver and he had encountered a guy named Steve Waterman
from Rockland or below Rockland maybe. He had come through here with two five-gallon pails
full of scallop nubs.

All Bill saw were dollar signs in his eyes. So, he shows up at the house with this ‘get-rich quick’
scheme and neither Bill nor | had any money. But my brother, John who works in the re-
insurance business outside of New York had more wherewithal than | and he has friends.

| called up John and said, “Bill and | have this idea for making money.” Can you lend, | can’t
remember if it was $5,000 or $10,000 or $20, 000 so that we can buy the equipment to go
diving?

Right there, that one thing was in my mind, what made possible the Isle au Haut electric power
cable. The reason for that once Bill and | got the $5,000 or $10,000 or whatever it was
thousands of dollars from John and ‘Wrongway’ Corrigan; he was the other guy with the
money. We bought dry suits from Norway, we bought ten dive tanks, we bought a Bauer
compressor to charge those tanks with, plus an underwater sound system so we could talk to
each other while the guy was on the bottom, and probably some other stuff that I've forgotten.
Off we went diving for scallops daily for years we did this. We basically dove, crawled around
the bottom from, and this is not an exaggeration, we crawled around every island and ledge
from MDI to Vinalhaven. That’s thousands of hours of bottom time and consequently in that
exposure to that topography. We kept notes on it. Every day we kept dive notes on what we
saw. With that information, you get a perspective that other people don’t have.

Kris: You have your own map of the area.

Parker: | can sit right here and see it. | can see every dip and bump and ledge and pile of rocks
and mounds of trash.

Kris: There is that much trash out there?
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Parker: That allowed me to think about running this extension cord in a way that was quite
helpful. It made me think, “Well, you don’t want to run it over any rock piles.” That’s a no
brainer. Any idea | came up with is not really rocket science at all; it's common sense.

And the other thing | thought about, you don’t want to run it in a straight line. They want to
save money on wire. So, they want to run a straight line from point A to point B. That’s
historically what people do because they want to save money on wire.

Kris: Having the slack in the line, is that what would help it from getting snagged?

Parker: It prevents a lot of things from happening.

Haul the thing to the surface and say, “Oh, my God, I've got this black snake on board and then
let it go. It will fall back down there. you don’t put any strain on it because you have all this
slack on there. When you haul it to the surface, you don’t have ‘tension on it.

Kris: You used...

Parker: It is simple, a serpentine pattern. You don’t run straight from Ato B, you runin a
circuitous manner. The other thing you do is make darn sure you avoid any rock piles or any
kinds of hazards you think might be down there. All those years having crawled along the
bottom, we knew where all those problems were. There is this deep hole that | call between
Merchants’ and Hardwood. It is basically a rock bowl down there.

There are some really jagged rocks down in there and some mounds of rocks down there.

So, when you go through that place, by deep hole, | mean 135 feet which is not that deep in the
ocean. But it is deep when you are talking about diving and working on the bottom.

Kris: You want to avoid those areas completely.

Parker: Avoid them or figure out the safest way to go through them. Consequently, as we dove
and once | knew we were going to be running this cable, | would start to figure out where the
track wanted to be. The other thing about the track, It was obvious and logical. it made most
sense to follow the mail boat route from Stonington to Isle au Haut. That was a no brainer. The
route in a sense was picked for me by those two points. The reason that was a good idea

with the mail boat running back and forth every day. if someone is in there dragging every day
during the winter. The people on the mail boat are so inclined and they definitely were in the
early years. | have not kept up but Those guys, they see somebody out there dragging

They can pull alongside and say, “Hey, don’t forget about the cable.” It’s not like the scallop
draggers are looking to pooch the electric line to Isle au Haut.

Kris: They would want to avoid it. They wouldn’t want to get caught up in a snag.

--Break —
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Nautical chart with markingsof new power cableline copied in bulk to distribute to local
boaters and fishermanin 1983. Planned route of power cable on ocean floor submitted to U.S
Army Qorp of Engineers and Environmental Protection Agency for permissionfor the project.
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Parker: | think the cable project took about three years from the time it was decided that
alternative energy was not available to us and that it took about three years to gather the
information the plan and bring it all together. The person to lay the cable was Russ Devereux,
he lived here on the island. He was very interested in the community and helping the
community. He was a very capable marine contractor. We hired Russ. He had his boat the
Mussel. The way Russ operated in those years whenever he had to bring some stuff around, he
would tether the Mussel to a barge, a steel barge that he made. | don’t recall the dimensions.

Basically, the Mussel was a pusher boat with this barge. We loaded the cable reels on his boat,
on the barge. He came across from Penobscot to do it. | don’t remember the day of the week.
But | do remember the time. It took Russ two hours and fifteen minutes to unspool the cable
from Stonington and we started at Stonington right there at what is now the boat company. We
headed out to Isle au Haut and got here 2 hours and 15 minutes later.

We’'d come to the end of one reel. There were a series of lobster buoys that | had put out to
mark where the course should run. Russ just went from one buoy to the next. He was kind of
snaking his way along as he went. We’d come to the end of one reel of cable and lashed/lobster
warp from the end of one reel to the beginning of the next. We’d throw it overboard and the
buoy is there on the surface and keep on going. So that’s how long it took. It took a while to
actually be able to turn the cable on. It took...there were five splices. It took approximately a
day for each splice.

The way the splicing came about was...it’s obvious that the splice is a weak point in a cable and |
wanted to make darn sure that we had the best possible splice. Once again, | got on the phone
at the hardware store and called around to a lot of the major utility companies in the country
that had ‘under street’ splices that they had to do like out in San Francisco and asked them all
who they used for a splicing company. Almost to the company, it was Jim Doucette from Power
Line Construction in Boston, Massachusetts.

That was a no brainer. So, | called up Jim and asked him if he would be willing to do this project
here and he came up and did it. In the Island Institute Journal, there was an article about the
project. In that article, | said that the first day Jim got seasick. It was flat calm that day. The time
of year | picked was in the summer when | thought the water would be the flattest. That there
would the least issue with the weather. We needed about a week to knit this thing together.

Kris: Can | just mention the article in the Island Journal was Volume 33 and the title of the
article was ‘The DIY Approach That Linked Isle au Haut to the Grid.”* I think it’s a fabulous article
and | encourage people to read it.

Parker: | got a kick out of the article. | had no idea how significant DIY is in today’s ‘YouTube’
age until a few days ago. | am on ‘YouTube’ and there are all these DIY clips that explain how to

! Groening, Tom, Island Journal, “The DIY Approach That Linked Isle au Haut to the Grid,” 33: 69-
71, 2017.
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Photo (top right): Bob Platt, President of Stonington and Deer Isle Power
Go. completing hookup at what is now the Isle au Haut Boat Co. pole in
Sonington.

Parker hired an electrical engineer from Baltimore, Maryland to design
both the Sonington and Isle au Haut substations. The Sonington and Deer
Isle Hectric Power . brought a 7,200 volt single phase power line down
to where Parker had started the cable run overboardto Isle au Haut.
There, they built a substation to spedification.

Photo (top left): work platform built by Parker Waite on which to make the
five splices required on the cable between Stonington and Isle au Haut.
Parker hired a professional cable splicer who did subterranean cable
splices under city streetsin Boston, New York and Chicago. He made the
splices while Parker assisted.

Photo (middle left): the processof burying the cable in the tidal zone
sediment below the school on the Isle au Haut end (Parker Waite on right).

Photo (bottom left): Parker Waite (not pictured) and Pat Tully (in photo)
are building the power company substation as specified next to the Isle au
Haut school.



Photo of the IAHelectric cable with polyethylene
surface jacket cut back to reveal the neutral or
ground conductors surrounding the sleeved
insulation with conductors.

Another view of the power cable with neutral wires,
polyethylene insulation and central conducting or
positive copper wiresdisplayed.
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Photo of the |IAHelectric cable reel with its triple
covered end capto seal it from salt water when
tossed overboardto be spliced at alater date. A
novel approach as previously, the splice had always
been done before lowering the cableinto the water.
With this project, splicing was a few weeks after the
layout of the entire run of cable.

Solicing power cable before lead sleeve applied and
filled with tar.



do this that or the other thing. Tom played on some current, not fad but craze for wanting to
understand how things are done by people uneducated, people who don’t know what they are
doing or people whatever steps they have to take to do something which | got a kick out of.

Kris: I'll have to look at that.

Parker: Anyway, | told you how long it took to pay this thing out. It took five days to splice it
together. Basically, Jim shaped the ends of every conductor at every splice. That’s a lot of
shaping. He used crimp sleeves at every conductor. The crimp sleeves were embedded in tar.
There was a large lead sleeve drawn over all of that to seal it. | feel like the splice is historically a
weak point in all cables and obviously, you can’t extrude seven miles of cable and lay it down so
you got to have splices. You have to figure out how to put the least amount of stress on the
splice and make sure it doesn’t create a problem in the flow of electricity. That’s what that was
all about.

There are some technical sides to splicing. | kind of got a taste of that when | helped repair the
cable from Long Island to Swan’s Island. So, | got a taste of what we would be up against with
the splices between here and Stonington.

Parker: The decision to run the cable as | stated earlier evolved out of the hope for an
alternative energy source which was not available then but fortunately is now. There were a
group of us on the board that deliberated and | mentioned Travers Nelson, Bob DeWitt, Dotty
Dodge, Tom Knight, and myself. | don’t believe Pat was on the board at that time but we
obviously turned to him regularly with our discussions. He was not in favor of the cable initially.
He wanted generation to be island-based. It may come back to that which is great, | think.

Kris: | agree.

Parker: There is a group of people sitting around talking the problem over, here in what was
Bob DeWitt’s house on a monthly basis. Once we made the decision to go ahead with the
project, we had input from people like Orville Sebring and once again, Travers Nelson. A
number of people pitched in with how to do this or that.

One of the items obviously was how are we going to pay for this thing? You need to know how
much it’s going cost. That was my job to come up with a price. Once | came up with a price
which | estimated at $110,000. You divide that by the number of customers you are going to
serve and that’s how we came up with the per meter cost which was around $1500 bucks but |
am not sure.

Kris: That sounds about right.

Parker: So how are you going to raise $1,500 bucks cause not everybody has that kind of
money. Some of the people on the Point came forward and said we’ll provide the money
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through a fund at the church to cover those people who don’t have the money. So, there we
were. It was looking like we had the money to do this project. So off we went.

What was involved in the preparation for the project? Well, like | said, it was three years of
trying to answer all of the questions that | could think of that we would confront laying the
cable. For me it was mind boggling. | feel like | didn’t go to sleep for three years. For three
years, that is all | thought about was the Isle au Haut electric power cable.

From every point of view, like the cable manufacturer, or what if you get an electrical
disturbance while they are extruding the cable down in New Hampshire.

| made a deal with them. If you get a disturbance in the high voltage power that is being
delivered to the plant while you are extruding the Isle au Haut cable, please just shut the thing
down. Just chop it and we will take it. That way there were no interruptions in power delivery
because | felt if there are variations in the power input during the extruding process, you are
going to get anomalies in either the wire or insulation. The anomalies are going to lead to
disturbances in the flow of electricity as it goes down the wire. Those disturbances in the flow
are a ‘wearing’ point. They are going to create a ‘wear’ point that ultimately breaks down
polyethylene insulation. That was one of the things | found out - polyethylene insulation was
failing after about ten years all around the United States.

By sheer luck, the Hendrix Wire and Cable Company had come up with, about six months
before we did our run, before they manufactured our run of cable, they had come up with an
anti-treeing compound. The failure of polyethylene insulation is considered a treeing problem.
The reason it is called treeing is because if you break down the insulation, it resembles the
branches of a tree. As the electricity is trying to escape from the conductor. If you think of the
conductor as a tube that encases a wire, the wire is basically a current of electricity not water.

Kris: Wow, that is all very involved.

Parker: As | worked on it, it seemed like every corner you come to in a project like this, presents
an enormous bunch of problems or complexities. You have to figure each one of them out.

And it really doesn’t take a lot of smarts, it takes persistence. Keep turning the stones over until
you get all the stones turned over and you have a map. You draw a map in your mind of how to
get through all the stones.

Kris: Can | interject here briefly? | wanted to mention you had done a special annual report to
the board and cooperative members of all the different alternatives you as a group had
considered to continue to have electricity on the island whether it was the wind, the solar,
staying with generators, going with the cable. | really thought you did a great job on that report
just outlining all the different options and what their cost implications were, the financing for
the whole project and the pros and cons of each option. You went into a lot of detail in what
was involved in doing cable and how it ended up being the most viable alternative at that time.
Now, you can go back to looking at the solar and wind which is very big now but back then was
not.
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Parker: No, it wasn’t practical then. | believe that outlook came from all the people that were
sitting around the table. By sheer coincidence, the table | am sitting at right now is very similar
to the table that | sat at all those years here in what was once Bob DeWitt’s house when we
talked about all those issues. So, the guys would say, “What about this? What about that?”
We'd write that down and then we’d address that. It was a group decision.

| think there were fifty of us then that had to make up our mind. | know that | was in the thick
of it. | felt not hesitancy but | felt unfortunate because | knew that Pat Tully who had started
the electric power company was not in favor of this cable. That didn’t make me feel great
because here | am promoting something that he wasn’t in favor of and | really feel what he did
for all of us in this community was enormous.

Kris: | think you continued to use a lot of the resources that he had already put together like the
telephone poles, the electric lines.

Parker: The methodology really. One of the issues is ‘why was single phase chosen?’ Pat had
selected single phase because that financially or fiscally was the simplest. It was one wire not
three. It would provide enough electricity, not for industrial use but for residential or rural
consumption. That’s what we were all needing. That’s why single phase was chosen. | had many
times wished it was three-phase. Three-phase would allow for a lot bigger motors that could be
used for businesses that people may want to start out here. That was one of the things that
was in the back of our mind. Try and provide an environment that would generate some sort of
business that would generated income that would allow other people to live here.

Kris: | think that is still a question nowadays. Whether or not it makes sense to keep the single
phase as the other is much more expensive. You have much more flexibility with the three-
phase.

Parker: If | had a vote in it, | would want three-phase. In order to do three-phase cable like over
on Vinalhaven or Swan’s Island, you run two other wires and that allowed them to have three
phase.

Kris: Would you lie them beside each other?

Parker: They could all be in the same channel. There would just be two more wires from
Stonington.

Kris: They would just meet up at each end. Is that what you are saying?
Parker: That’s all three-phase is, three conductors bringing what one conductor is supplying
right now.

The advantage with three-phase, you can back feed the grid. With what we generate here, if we
had three-phase, we could back feed Stonington.
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Kris: If you had enough solar panels that you could actually store it and send it back. Good
point. Big distinction between the two.

Parker: | mentioned Russ’s boat, the Mussel and his steel barge. Those were the boats, the
barge we loaded the rolls of cable onto. The longest cable was 7,000 feet and the shortest may
have been 2 or 3,000 feet. It didn’t’ matter how long the cables were. | knew how long the reels
were. | knew where my splice points were going to be because | knew the distance. Greg Runge
ran back and forth numerous times with his fathometer which had print out tape on it. He gave
me the printout tapes. | had an absolute path distance-wise plus | knew the bottom because of
the fathometer. Plus, | was diving on it. | had tapes that | could lay down so | knew where and
how long the wire was so | would estimate where my splice points were going to fall. So, | could
plan where my splices landed.

| wanted to pick a soft bottom place. | didn’t want the splices to be laying on hard bottom. The
other thing | didn’t want. When we laid the cable out, it was laid out as in as gentle a manner as
possible and | didn’t want the splices to be in a region that might be hauled back up like say by
scallop draggers. You can’t predict with lobster gear because lobster gear can fetch into it and
could hauled back up.

Kris: When Russ was laying the cable down on the seaboard floor were you actually down
there?

Parker: | wasn’t. | was on the metal barge itself. | was tying the end of one reel to the beginning
of the next reel throwing the buoys overboard. Russ was following the buoys that | had already
laid out as a guideline where to go. Plus, he knew to snake through that track. Nobody was
underwater. | had heard a rumor about me hauling this over my back from Stonington to here. |
couldn’t even fathom that, no pun intended.

The equipment we needed to do the job: obviously, there were Russ’s boats plus his crane over
at his yard. When the reels of cable were delivered by truck from Hendricks Wire and Cable
down in Portsmouth, New Hampshire, they were offloaded at Russ’s landing there in Penobscot
and loaded on his barge.

Kris: Okay, which he towed over here with his boat.

Parker: He brought that over here and then Because we knew how long each reel of cable was,
we knew where the splice point was going to be. We put the reels of cable in sequence on his
barge. So, it was all no brainer. The crane allowed him...there was a crane was on the barge.
That allowed him to pick up the reel when we were running the reels out. His barge allowed
him to put it on an iron bar and that would allow it to spool off fairly very easily. | think the
spools were about twelve feet in diameter. So, they were way bigger than anybody could lift.

Kris: | would think.
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The Isle au Haut Cable Project took Parker over two years to complete. As the Chief Ehgineer and Presdent of the IAH Hectric Power
Co., Parker was strugglingto keep three old generators in srvice 24 hours aday, 7 days aweek, year-round. He spent ayear
investigating other means of supplying electricity to the island community. He was hopingto come up with aviable aternative form of
generation ¢ wave, wind, co-generation or other. The answer though was a cable (extenson cord) from the mainland. It took another
year or so to organize the project. Russ Devereuxand crew were hired to runthe cable out of Sonington to Isle au Haut following a
route Parker marked out with buoys based on two years of dive surveysto find aroute through the ridgesof ledge found between
Sonington and Isle au Haut. In the photo above, Russ begins the run with sx separate spools of cable, each about 8000feet long.
Parker triple sealed both ends of cable on each gpodl because he was goingto haveto returnand splice the piecesof cable together in
place between Sonington and Isle au Haut.

Photo (below) was taken two hours later and after more than seven miles of cable had been runout showing Russ? barge enteringthe
Isle au Haut Thoroughfare.




Parker: Other equipment other than cranes and boats. There was a splicing platform and that
was basically a float. | don’t remember the dimensions exactly but it was the size of a very small
swimming pool that Russ built with Styrofoam flotation. | built a work bench on that barge with
a canopy roof to protect if we got into rain or while Jim Doucette was working. | wanted some
way to shield him from the sun or weather.

Other equipment. Once the whole line was spliced together, we had to test it to make sure
there were no failures, no leakage. So, Jim brought on a huge DC generator and we plugged the
DC generator into the cable where it came ashore In Stonington at what is the Isle au Haut Boat
Company. He ran that generator for half an hour to build up the electricity in the line. It wasn’t
going to anybody’s house. It was DC, it wasn’t AC.

Then, he capped the line to see how long the line would hold the charge. That would tell us if in
fact that we were successful in a series of splices and that the line wasn’t leaking. There wasn’t
a failure somewhere in the line. What happened was, this was another thing that was amazing.
When we tapped the line, there was more electricity in that line than he had put into it. What
that meant was that line due to its length and this is sheer luck, it was a giant capacitor and it
was amplifying itself within. The current was going back and forth.

If you look at the billing from what was then Bangor Hydro Company and | did go back and look
at it in subsequent years, the Bangor Hydro, we were being billed for less electricity than we
were receiving. The cable was actually amplifying the power it was delivering. | don’t know
what the percentage was but it wasn’t huge.

What, this is bizarre. We were getting more power down here than we were paying for.

What were some of the considerations and what time of year to lay the cable? | tried to pick
the best time.

Kris: The project didn’t take as long as | thought it would. Did you have any complications or
anything unexpected that came up after that?

Parker: Oh yeah! There is a really neat story that happened here that came up.

Toward the end when | was working on the project. Pat had let my wife, Carolyn and | live in
‘Ardency’ which was his parents summer home down opposite from where he and Tina lived,
up on a little knoll. It has a large living room area and there was a big table in there. | don’t
remember how long the table was but | had a friend come visit me. His name was Tom Haack.
He and | met in the Navy and we roomed together in San Diego and then we all went our
separate ways.

Tom ended up working for Lazard Frere. | am probably mispronouncing the name of this
investment firm. And just as life would have it, he ended up being the guy trying to raise
money for the Three Gorges project in China which had started a little bit before the Isle au
Haut power cable. Tom came to visit one summer obviously not ‘83, it was ‘82 maybe.
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Tom and | are there in Ardency. | had the Isle au Haut Power Company project laid out on the
table, a seven-mile long project. On the other three quarters of the table, Tom had the Three
Gorges project laid out. It was profound. The two of us stepped back and looked at those two
projects and we obviously fell into a conversation about the disparity in size.

Kris: You still have to look at some of the same factors? Interesting.

Parker: Other glitches. The glitch that Tom Groening wrote about in the Island Journal article. |
had put too much slack on the warp running down to a splice point between Merchant’s and
Hardwood Islands.

In the tide, the slack tied itself around a pile of rocks down there. So, when | came back with
Jim Doucette to haul that cable back to the surface to splice it, it was tied to the bottom. | had
to dive down about 135 feet there. It’s pretty deep for scuba diving. You can’t stay down more
than ten minutes or you have to decompress.

| didn’t have any ability to decompress on board and | didn’t have anybody to really tend the
boat because Jim didn’t know what he was doing with the boat. | took a gamble and jumped
overboard and got down there as fast | could get down there. There was plenty of light down
there. | was able to untie the cable. It took about nine minutes from the time | went overboard
until | got back to the surface. | was cutting it a little close.

Kris: Wow, that’s a very close call.

Parker: The other glitch that was written about in the article was static electricity.

| had never considered | had seven miles of a conductor that we were splicing together and that
it would generate static electricity. We were off of Flake Island and for some reason, | ended
up touching the neutral and positive together and | was standing in a puddle of water on Bill’s
boat, the Nana. | had the exposed piece of cable onboard which ran all the way back to
Stonington,

| got nailed by the seven miles of static electricity. It blew me off my feet. Now static electricity
doesn’t have any amps in it and that’s what hurts people. So, | wasn’t damaged by it but |
certainly was shocked by it.

| am sure there were a bunch of other glitches that | don’t recall now. There were a whole
bunch of ancillary or fringe stories that were occasioned by what it was | was trying to do.

Kris: | think we have answered most of the questions, all but the last one.

Parker: Did you have any inkling or idea as to how long the cable would last? Yeah. If we got ten
years of out of this, we were lucky. It ended up the cable cost $90,000. We didn’t end up
spending $110,000 dollars so that other twenty grand got plowed into a fund to replace the
cable which the company has. Plus, | went to the Public Utilities Commission and got the rate
structured so there was a certain percentage set aside with every bill for a replacement fund in
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the following years. | had no idea what it would cost to replace. | knew it was going to have to
be replaced and | guessed ten years. Am | surprised?

It’s overwhelming to me and | am really proud of it. | am really cognizant of how lucky we all are
that it has lasted that long. And it is certainly not something | did. There is some other factor at
play in the fact that it has lasted. Cables don’t normally last that long that | am aware of.

Kris: Hasn't it been like thirty-five years now?

Parker: Thirty some years. ‘83 was when we turned it on, 34 years | guess.

Kris: That’s quite impressive. Well, we are all grateful that it has lasted this long. | know as they
go forward into looking into solar or...it"’s been a godsend all these years to this community.

Hopefully, something similar will come out of the current project.

Parker: | am very glad that Bill Stevens needed the help and that | was there. | am grateful that |
was involved with it.

Kris: | think you should be proud of the role you played. All those hours, what you have done.
Three years of planning You put so many hours into researching such a major project. | know
when you compare it to Three Gorges by itself, | think a major accomplishment. You should be
proud of what you have done.

Parker: Compared to Three Gorges, it is infinitesimal.

Kris: Well, we aren’t looking at that. Just out of curiosity, how does Russ Devereux spell the
name of his boat?

Parker: Mussel.

Kris: It seems like a real pun on words. It took a lot of muscle to put all this together.

Parker: That was one thing | felt really great about. At the end of the project Russ came to me
and said to me, ‘I've never worked on a project that went that smoothly.” He was grateful to be

part of the project too. And he definitely was, it wasn’t like | was calling all the shots.

Kris: Is there anything else you would like to add about this project you were involved with? |
appreciate you taking the time to share with us.

Parker: | hope it continues to last and | am grateful that people, fishermen have been

respectful. | know that the cable has been picked up a number of times. And | know there has
been an Inordinate amount of strain put on it. In one case, it was hooked by an anchor.
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| don’t know how many hundreds of horsepower he had on his boat. But, he went full ahead
and full astern trying to free himself and | worried about what kind of internal damage had
been done to the wire.

Kris: Somehow it has made it through.

Parker: Knock on wood as they say. Thank you, Kristen.

Kris: Thank you, Parker. | appreciate you taking the time to do this. | look forward to talking
with you again.
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